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CHAIR COUCH: . . . (gavel). . . Will the Planning Committee meeting of July 30, 2012 please come to
order. Good afternoon everybody. It is now a little bit after 1:30; it's about 1:33 and I want to
welcome everybody to the Planning Committee meeting. First things first. Let's make sure
everybody's cell phone, grab it, take a look at it and make sure it is on silent mode so that we
don't have disruptions in the gallery. Alright. I want to welcome the Committee voting
Members today. My...the Committee Vice-Chair Gladys Baisa.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: And then just going right down the line, we have Councilmember Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha.
CHAIR COUCH: And we have Council Chair Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good afternoon.
CHAIR COUCH: Good afternoon. And we have Councilmember Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Good afternoon. And Councilmember White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aloha.
CHAIR COUCH: Aloha. And then Council Vice-Chair Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Good afternoon.
CHAIR COUCH: And we have the non-voting Members are not here so we've got a full Committee.
Thank you, everybody, for being here. From the Administration, we have Will Spence, the
Planning Director. Good afternoon.
MR. SPENCE: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: John Summers from the Long Range Department.
MR. SUMMERS: Good afternoon, Chair.
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CHAIR COUCH: And Simone Bosco, Senior Planner.
MS. BOSCO: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: And we will be having, I think, Joe Alueta coming up. And in the back we, right
now we have our Deputy Corporation Counsel, Michael Hopper but standing in for him at the
moment, we have James Giroux, 'cause the first item is going to be James' bailiwick.
MR. GIROUX: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Good afternoon. And then we have Budge Director Sandy Baz as well.
CHAIR COUCH: Aloha. And we have Legislative Analyst, Kim Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Good afternoon.
CHAIR COUCH: Good afternoon. And Committee Secretary, Clarita Balala. Good afternoon.
Alright. We have three...four items on the agenda today. We have PC-39 which is the
Implementation of the General Plan discussion; PC-35 which is M-1 Light Industrial District;
PC-36, M-2 Heavy Industrial District; and PC-37 which is M-3 Restricted Industrial District or
some people call it "Super Heavy". One of the things I wanted to talk to...talk about, Members,
on PC-39 which is the Implementation of the General Plan is that this proposal does not remove
the implementation plan from the General Plan but it makes it its own document as opposed to a
piece of the Maui Island Plan. The Countywide Policy Plan, Maui Island Plan, and
implementation plan, and all the community plans will compromise [sic] the whole General Plan
if this bill comes to fruition. This is essentially a financial document and when we make budget
amendments all throughout the year, especially at budget time, we would, the way it stands now
we would have to make an ordinance to amend the Maui Island Plan every budget item. What
we're trying to do is put that and make it its own special document and we can amend that every
time we do a budget change. So, and then that would also keep the Maui Island Plan intact. The
issue is we've got Molokai and Lanai and this implementation plan has to cover those as well.
So, those are some of the things that we're talking about in this...I wanted to give you a little
pre-thing on, on PC-39 on the Implementation Of The General Plan. You may hear people
saying that it's...we're getting rid of the implementation plan. We are not. I just wanted to
make that announcement in and front. Right now, we're ready to do public testimony. Members
of the audience if you want to come up and testify, feel free. We have five people so far signed
up to testify. You're limited to the item on our agenda today. Sign up at the desk in the back if
you feel that you want to testify. You're limited to three minutes with one minute to conclude.
We'll have a lighting system and at three minutes I will say, "three minutes" just to remind you
if in case you don't see the lights or the, the clock on the thing and then you have one more
minute to finish your comments. Please state your name. Let me rephrase, reiterate that. Please
state your name and then if you are representing a group or an organization, please let us know
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who that is. Alright. We're ready for public testimony. First to testify is Lance Holter followed
by Greg Kauwe. I know I said that wrong but Greg' 11 correct me.

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MR. HOLTER: Good afternoon, Committee Members. My name is Lance Holter and I wanted to speak
regarding the M-3 Zoning. I want to commend and congratulate you in including this.
Specifically, I'm interested in large-scale solar utility projects. Back in 2007, I brought over the
largest utility plant builders in, in the world, and we started looking around at Maui and Hawaii.
And since I've gone all around the State and the only place that it's it really feasible because it
has to be flat and sunny and close to a transmission power plant and transmission lines is the
isthmus of Maui. And I've gone everywhere and I just want you to know that back in 2007 we
discovered some numbers and one was that we import $7 billion worth of petroleum into Hawaii
and that $7 billion it goes right out of our economy and goes back out overseas. And specifically
in Maui, we import $250 million worth of diesel to run our power plants, so I'm sure you're all
aware that we're going to truly get off our addiction to petroleum, then solar I believe is the best
way. And this, this... the area around Puunene, it was 86 acres I think was in the process in the
Plan right now being zoned will include a power plant, utility power plant, and I would also like
you to consider the areas around it so that we could allow these very--how would you say it?-low-impact projects which will...for example, to do a 25 megawatt project, we would need about
5 to 7 acres of land per megawatt. So to do... so that would be around 300 acres, and if you
would include this and with very important consideration that M-3 have this in there, I think this
will be a big kick start into getting into...getting our County sustainable and energy independent.
I had a couple questions. One was the minimum [sic] height at 199 feet and I'm wondering can
this be changed with a Special Use Permit? For example, windmills are 300 feet, so forth, so is
this something that's etched, is this a final, final law or is it something that we can adjust with a
Special Use Permit showing that it's safe and logical and so forth? One of the designs for solar
power, concentrated solar power uses a tower with mirrors focusing at the tower, heating the
tower and the oils in the tower to 600, 700 degrees. So a tower...although that's not in any of
the plans that I've seen, it could be a possibility. So that's my only question. And I just want to
thank you for considering solar utility projects for M-3. Thank you very much.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Holter. Members, any questions for the testifier? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Lance for being here. Just to clarify, to
produce one megawatt you need seven acres of land?
MR. HOLTER: Yes. In this, in this particular kind of technology it's called concentrated solar thermal.
It's a, it's a mirror. It's about 14 feet long And the mirror is about 12 foot in diameter. There's a
tube of mineral oil in the center and it tracks the sun. Currently, there's $3.5 billion worth of
560 megawatts being built in Mesa, Arizona in the Mohave Desert, three and a half billion
dollars. It's employing several thousand people and afterwards will have...those jobs will
probably have...there'll be about 250 jobs per power plant. It'd be a great way to train our local
labor and, and ancillary project, the pole.
-4-
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. One more question. You said 86 acres is
being planned in Puunene. Where at?
MR. HOLTER: Well, there's a, there's a zoning there that I saw, I read about and this is why I'm in
here interested. The 86 acres and it's near the...it's just little bit south and east of the raceway. I
think you call it the raceway project?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MR. HOLTER: The Puunene...the old...sort of more west of the runway but that is 86 acres that I
believe is being included in the Plan for M-3...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. HOLTER: And what I'm interested in for, for the future is that the lands around that, especially the
State lands, the DLNR lands be, you know, some kind of a flexible zoning that, that might be
able to be utilized for this kind of technology.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Good. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. Members, any further questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Thank you, Mr. Holter.
MR. HOLTER: Thank you. Aloha.
CHAIR COUCH: Aloha. Greg Kauwe. Kauwe. I totally butchered that. Sorry. Followed by Susan
Moikeha.
MR. KAUWE: Good afternoon, Committee Chair and Committee Members. My name is Greg Kauwe.
CHAIR COUCH: Kauwe.
MR. KAUWE: And, and I'm testifying on behalf of myself on M-3 Restricted Industrial District and
the protection of groundwater. In 1985, an ordinance establishing the new chapter under Title 19
of the Maui County Code pertaining to the Kihei Research and Technology Park was drafted.
After a year of discussions and revisions, Ordinance 1541, Bill 24 (1986) was passed by the
Maui County Council. Countless hours of collaboration between the Maui Economic
Development Board, Maui County, and concerned individuals resulted in the establishment of
guidelines that protect groundwater resources and the implementation of administrative,
enforcement, and support systems for the R&T Park. Prior to this period, on January 20, 1982,
the residents of Silicon Valley were shocked to hear that deadly chemicals used and stored in
South San Jose had polluted the drinking water supplies of an entire neighborhood. Scores of
birth defects, stillbirths, cancers, and other serious health problems were reported in the
-5-
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contaminated neighborhood. As a result, groups and individuals from throughout Silicon Valley
formed the Silicon Valley Toxics Coalition. The Coalition then played a key role in developing
a model ordinance that was adopted by several cities throughout Santa Clara County.
Section 19.33.090, Environmental Controls for, of the Kihei Research and Technology Park was
formed in part by information from the Silicon Valley Toxics Coalition. The proposed bill
establishing a new M-3 Restricted Industrial District for manufacturing, processing, storage and
treatment of goods from raw materials in Maui County needs to have environmental controls that
mitigate groundwater contamination. With expertise from the County's Environmental, Water,
and Wastewater Departments, the Kihei Research and Technology Park and Santa Clara
ordinances could be modified to address today's industrial climate. A section for high water
users that draw and discharge by-products into the groundwater should include pH testing at
various layers of the aquifer -CHAIR COUCH: Three minutes.
MR. KAUWE: --and be required to obtain an NPDS or National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
Systems permit. My testimony today is to bring attention to a bill already in place that can be the
foundation for establishing environmental controls for manufacturing, processing, storage or
treatment of goods from raw materials. Groundwater protection is crucial for the islands. Every
effort must be taken to prevent contamination of this resource even if it takes multiple locations
and points of testing. It would be too costly when all the abnormal rates of health issues surface
as experienced throughout the United States. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. Any...Members, any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank
you very much. Next testifier is Susan Moikeha followed by Jim Smith.
MS. MOIKEHA: Good afternoon, Chair and Committee Members, and thank you for the opportunity to
speak today. My name is Susan Moikeha and I am speaking on my own behalf. I've had a close
connection to this ordinance beginning when the then Chair of the Committee, the Planning
Committee, Charmaine Tavares, first began to put together this, this ordinance. So my history is
long and I've seen the implementation, and I will say I don't think there's a person here doesn't
think this ordinance is highly complex. I know the Department would agree with you and
everybody here and just look at how it's transformed over six years of where we first began.
Does it really take six years to put this into effect? I don't think so. And if it does then there's
something wrong here. But I don't think what you're about to do today by taking out the most
critical part of the ordinance, the implementation plan out of it is going to speed this up or make
it any more clear or get it implemented in any reasonable time. I understand that you're on time
constraint, but I think that's the wrong thing to do. While I briefly understand that you're going
take it and deal with it later, my personal opinion it belongs to be dealt with now and I'll tell you
why. Quoting directly from the implementation section that the Planning Department put
together, a CIPS will fall within the framework of the Countywide Policy Plan. You've already
done that. You've passed it on and you still haven't addressed implementation. Maui Island
Plan is before you now and you need to deal with this now, but it also is to effect the Maui Island
Plan, the Maui six community plans, and the Molokai and Lanai Community Plans. Population
-6-
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forecasts for a 20-year timeframe and Urban And Rural Growth areas identify in the Maui Island
Plan will...where, where will provide the infrastructure. The CIPS is proposed as a framework
and process to improve CIP implementation in accordance with the County Policy Plan, which
you've done already and passed, the Maui Island Plan which is before you now, and the
community plans. And I'll tell you why this is so important. Because it has an element of cost,
of budgeting. And who has that fiduciary responsibility is this Council. Quoting again on
Page 9-6 of this written document, the County will have a clear and predictable method for CIP
programming based on the CIP...it's a strategy. The CIPS will be prepared by the County
departments and will be flexible and is subject to final approval through the budgeting process
by the Maui County Council. You're about to go into another budget session and do you even
know what we need in the way of costs? A lot of these costs are being discussed now.
You...we're at a crisis of infrastructure. Do we use it to cap population and determine growth
that way, or do we provide for everybody who has a desire to be here and want it and come here
in the future is the question that I have.
CHAIR COUCH: Three minutes.
MS. MOIKEHA: I don't understand it. I think it's the wrong thing to do just to be under a deadline and
to, to do this. And that's my comments.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
Ms. Moikeha. James Smith followed by Lucienne de Naie.
MR. SMITH: Chairperson Couch, Members of the Planning Committee, my name is Jim Smith. Thank
you for being here. This...the word that comes to mind immediately is dysfunction. The
planning dysfunction that has involved us, has come forward in the decade of 2000. It's never
been as bad as that. So we have to look to the cause of dysfunction. Okay. The cause of
dysfunction is not solved by putting another implementation plan in the planning process. That
doesn't happen basically. Now we can look at this and try to analyze where the dysfunction is. I
think it's pretty clear the dysfunction happened primarily, okay, by an inept Executive Branch,
primarily. They're supposed to implement plans and they didn't want to do it so they found a
reason not to do it and that was a dysfunctional plan. And once it's accepted by a Chair of a
Council Committee, Wayne Nishiki for example, that we need to go forward with a new
ideology for planning, well, we screw it all up. Our first plan in 1980 was 17 pages, Ordinance
No. 1052 worked fine. 1990, Ordinance No. 2039 worked fine. Nine...2004, Ordinance
No. 3166, who's on first base? 2006, a Director comes in. I can't function. Why can't you
function? Well, because the planning, the Corporation Counsel told me I can't so I'm coming
forward here. So he comes to the Planning Committee under Charmaine Tavares, and John
Summers comes and says after listening to testimony, you know what, this is...it, it, it shouldn't
be part of the General Plan, it shall be the General Plan. That screwed it all up big time. You
can't distinguish between a basket and a fruit? Give me a break. And so now we're continuing
along that and now we want to do what? An implementation plan clearly in conflict with our
Charter. The Citizen Advisory Committee establishes all those under 8.55. It says they're going
to spell out these things. Okay. It's a dysfunctional Executive Branch. It wants to change itself
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into something else. And you are being asked to go along with it and the Council has for eight
years. I think it's time you said pull it up short, friends. Eighteen pages in 1980; how many
pages in 2012? How many? A thousand? Countywide Plan? Island Plan? CAC Plan?
Implementation plan?
CHAIR COUCH: Three minutes.
MR. SMITH: Hello. Thank you very much, sir.
CHAIR COUCH: You still have one more minute.
MR. SMITH: I said enough.
CHAIR COUCH: Alright. Thank you, Mr. Smith. Members, any questions for the testifier? Hearing
none, thank you, Mr. Smith.
MR. SMITH: You're welcome.
CHAIR COUCH: Lucienne de Naie followed by David Park.
MS. DE NAIE: Good afternoon, Committee Members. My name is Lucienne de Naie. I'm testifying
on two matters today. I'll start off with the, the proposed implementation changes and then go
over to the M-1, if I might. On the proposed implementation I do share some of the same
questions that Ms. Moikeha does. It's like...it's a little hard to kind of figure out how all this is
going to help things. I trust someone has given it some thought, but if, if we could get the
answer to some questions here, I think we would all feel a lot better about knowing what should
go forward. First of all, how long is this going to take? I, I see, I see, you know, 30 days from
this, and 120 days from that, and a year from this, and I'm just kind of doing some rough math
and it looks like it could be a couple of years before we have an implementation plan. Maybe
that's not the case but it would be I think nice for everyone to be clear to know what they're
signing on to. The second is it's going to be I guess submitted back to the three GPACs. Will
these be the existing GPACs as they are empanelled now, because my understanding is that these
GPACs, that our tenure kind of goes along with the General Plan. And so is this...I mean with
the Maui Island Plan, you know, like the Maui GPAC is about the Maui Island Plan, it's not
about the General Plan. So if this is then moved to the General Plan, does the Maui GPAC still
have authority to review it from the Maui point-of-view? So it would just be nice to know if this
is going to the Molokai GPAC and the Maui GPAC and the Lanai GPAC as they exist today or if
we need to appoint new GPACs. Also, item J on Page 5 talks about the status reports, and it
deletes the idea that the status reports will talk about any enforcement. Now usually during
status reports is when the public sort of finds out what's going on. So if there's likely to be some
enforcement of the implementation process, in other words it's going to move forward and you
know, that someone's holding someone accountable for it, it certainly would be nice to know.
Maybe there's a reason for removing that language but maybe that concept needs to stay. And
then last, you know, on the, on the human scale, it seems to me that if we sort of push this into
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the future, we lose the wisdom of two very experienced Council members, Mr. Pontanilla and
Mr. Mateo, who've been through many budget sessions, who've made a lot of decisions about
implementation of things through community plan processes and so forth. So are we going to
have the benefit of their experience if if this is taken and done separately? Will they already
have left the Council and we'll have start a couple of, you know, well...I'm sure, well-qualified
new people in at the bottom rung? So -CHAIR COUCH: Three minutes.
MS. DE NAIE: --those are my questions and I would like to hope that the Council would get some
answers to them. On to M-1. On the M-1 ordinance, I've seen this kind of bounced around. A
few years ago it came to the Planning Commission and they were trying to get rid of the stacked
provisions in it. That didn't make it too much further than that although I think there's some,
certainly some pluses and minuses to allowing the business uses in M-1 rather than just in a
regular business district so that you kind of know what you're getting , but definitely there's
some good things in here. The M-1 really should be for our, our local enterprises. It should be
the places where our small businesses can start up and diversify the economy. I think, you know,
expanding the definition to include the production and multimedia facilities, energy and other
things is good. I noticed that that there's a provision added that residential uses are excluded
except for dwelling units located above or below the first floor apartments. And I just heard the
other day in the Planning Commission from Mr. Jencks that there's just no market for this sort of
thing. So, I, I guess it's good to have it as an option if there ever was a market. It is part of
smart growth planning. It is a very traditional use, you know, lots of artists live in lofts above
their rehearsal studios downstairs or their art studios downstairs. So, I, I'm not against it. It's
just, I guess the Council should know if that's something that's going to be misused or if it's
actually going to be a practical use. Other than that, I just think that there's some good new
definitions that are put into here to kind of define what some of our small businesses could be in
the future, and so you know, I'll continue to, to track it and just see how the language works out.
But my preference would be is if business district had business use and manufacturing had
manufacturing use, you know, with its commercial component, but we see them all run together
and therefore, Old Navy is in an M-1 Zone and I'm not sure if that's what any of us intended but
that's what's going to keep happening if...unless we change that language. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Ms. de Naie. Members, any questions for the testifier? I have one. You
mentioned that your, your question was how long is this going to take? Two...you see two or
three years. What's the difference between where it is now and where it's going out? The
language hasn't changed very much. It's just pulling it out of the Maui Island Plan and making it
part of the General Plan. So if we left it in the Maui Island Plan it's still you see it taking two or
three years?
MS. DE NAIE: Well, well, no. If, it seems like if you leave it in the Maui Island Plan then the review
has been completed and you folks will complete your review, hopefully this year as part of the
Maui Island Plan. It's adopted as part of the whole Island Plan and then it goes forward. And if
that section needs to be amended separately, I don't know if there's a provision to do that.
-9-
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Perhaps that's why it's being pulled out so it's more easy to amend because it's something that,
that could connect to the budgets as, as you mentioned earlier. But if it is pulled out separately,
it appears from this document that it's going to need to go to planning commissions to be
reviewed because they haven't seen it. It's going to be something, you know, that, that they
haven't seen, you know, after you folks decide how it's going to be shaped. It's unclear. I mean,
maybe none of that has to happen, but I think you should sit down with your Corp. Counsel and
the wisdom of everybody involved and figure out what the one, two, three, and four would be
here.
CHAIR COUCH: And that's what we're here today for.
MS. DE NAIE: Great.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you.
MS. DE NAIE: Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Members, any further questions? Seeing none, thank you, Ms. de Naie. David Park
followed by Irene Bowie.
MR. PARK: Good afternoon, everybody. My name is David Park. I am the lead engineer at Maui
Electric, and I'd like to read a letter regarding the proposed amendments to the Maui County
Code relating to M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District. And first off, we'd like to thank you for
the opportunity to submit testimony regarding the proposed amendments to the Maui County
Code Chapter 19.24 relating to M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District. With the number of
existing and planned electrical facilities being situated within industrial areas, Maui Electric
Company is directly impacted by the proposed amendments. First, we highlight that MECO
supports the addition of utilities...utility facilities minor as a permitted use in the M-1 Light
Industrial District and the addition of utility facilities major as a permitted use in the M-2 Heavy
Industrial District, as these uses meet the purpose and intent of these districts. Similarly, MECO
further supports the inclusion of power plants, substations, and utility facilities major in the
proposed M-3 Restricted Industrial District, as these uses meet the purpose and intent of this
district. Second, MECO respectfully requests the following amendment to the M-1 Light
Industrial District for the reasons stated below: that the M...that the section 19.24.020,
Permitted Uses for the M-1 Light Industrial District be amended to include substations. So the
proposed...the existing language says for this section, utility facilities minor and we'd like to
add, make the change to utility, utility facilities minor and substations. Our rationale is MECO's
substations are similar in use and appearance to other utility facilities that are captured in the
Maui County Code definition of minor utility facilities. MECO's substations are secure facilities
that do not pose any impacts that are greater in magnitude than other facilities that are classified
as minor utility facilities. If located in industrial areas, MECO substations would be distanced
from schools, parks, and residential neighborhoods. With the other uses such as warehousing,
assembly, and manufacturing being listed as permitted uses, substations are seen as...are seen to
be an appropriate use in the Light Industrial District. For these reasons, we propose that all
-1 0-
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substations be included as permitted uses in the M-1 Light Industrial District. In summary, with
the foregoing recommended--sorry, I'm over--with the foregoing recommended amendments,
MECO is in support of proposed bills related to MCC Chapters 19.24, 19.26, and 19.25 related
to the M-1 Light Industrial, M-2 Heavy Industrial, and M-3 Industrial Zoning Districts. Thank
you.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Park. Members, any questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank
you. Mr. Park, are you going to be available if we start talking about some of this Maui Electric
stuff? Substations and whatnot.
MR. PARK: As long as I get a call. Sure.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. If you're in the back then we'll...we might be able to call you down as a
resource.
MR. PARK: But I am planning to leave, so.
CHAIR COUCH: Oh, you are planning to leave.
MR. PARK: Yeah. But I am available by phone in case you do.
CHAIR COUCH: Can you leave your phone number with Staff?
MR. PARK: Yes. Sure.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you.
MR. PARK: Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Irene Bowie followed by Dick Mayer.
MS. BOWIE: Good afternoon, Chair and Committee Members. Irene Bowie, Executive Director of
Maui Tomorrow Foundation and I'm testifying on implementation of the General Plan. And I
had some testimony but I think I'm just more confused than anything. And I think I'm here
today to learn more about what this means. I'll look forward to hearing the discussion. Maui
Tomorrow would like to support the implementation plan as a stand-alone document if that's
something that Long Range Planning is really supporting. I think, you know, our philosophy is
they know what they're doing in essence, so if this is something that they recommend and they
see advantages to it then we'd like to, you know, we'd like to go along with that. I understand
that there will be discussion about advantages to this as a stand-alone document for, for
amendments that might be easier than, than having it as part of the Maui Island Plan, but I think
like a few of the other testifiers, we do have questions. Seeing the brackets around enforcement
on Page 5 is, is a little bit of a cause for concern for us and also as was mentioned, how long it's
going to take to move this along. We'd like to see this, if it does happen, move forward in a
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timely manner so that it's in tandem with the Maui Island Plan. So, you know, I think we share
folks' concerns but we would like to support it so I guess we're here to learn today. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Alright. Thank you, Ms. Bowie. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Dick Mayer and Members, Dick Mayer is the last person to sign up to testify.
If somebody else wants to testify, go ahead and sign up and we can get you in.
MR. MAYER: Good afternoon, Chair Couch and Members of the County Council. When I first saw
this I was very disturbed because I think that this change would delay the process, cause very
many more meetings for lots of people and not needed meetings. It would probably extend the
planning component...excuse me, the implementation part of it out another year and a half to
two years after this year. It would mean having to go through it all over again at the GPAC
level, at the Planning Commission level, and back into Council Committee and et cetera, at the
full Council as a whole separate document. And I think that would be an unnecessary set of
meeting. Even this meeting, I think considering this is really time that could be...could've been
used to go through the Chapters 8 and 9, 10 that you have remaining. There are questions that
were previously raised. Would this be the same GPAC? Would it be a Countywide GPAC?
Would, would the existing GPACs stay in order? None of that is taken care of really in the
ordinances being proposed. The word enforcement was mentioned by several people. I don't
see any reason why that has to be taken out. One of the things that we heard over and over again
from the public was please get a plan that can be implemented and enforced, that we can hold
particular department heads accountable. So often you folks yourselves have said, you know,
we're frustrated, we can't do things because there's no enforcement of the things we pass.
This...taking the word enforcement out on the bottom of Page 5 I think would be a large
mistake. There's another concern that I have and that is in terms of your processing this
... (coughs)... excuse me, and that is the General Plan that we're taking about which deals with
the major land patterns in the County. I believe this ordinance that you have before you would
have to go to the respective planning commissions before it comes back to the Council, that
would be under County Charter Chapter 8...8 point...8.4 requires these types of things to go to
the, to the planning commission to discuss all matters that deal with land, land use ordinances
and this is certainly a major element in changing the County's single most important land use
ordinance. One of the things, if you look at the Chapter, Chapter 9 that we have in the book
now, the implementation chapter, you will find that there is already provisions to implement this
plan effectively, and one of the concerns I think you may is that somehow it needs to be tinkered
with the numbers that are in there are now two years out-of-date because it was done a while
back and it's taken three years now to get to these...to this stage. In there, there's on Page 9-22
of the...of the plan before you, there's a section called the General Plan Implementation
Committee. There will be a committee set up--that's one of the beauties of this thing--a
committee of all the department heads who will be doing this and updating this plan
continuously. It's not like you're approving a 20-year plan right now. You're approving the
process by which this plan will be reviewed. And I think that's very important. The committee
will be set up and I hope that will be set up soon and they will update the numbers. Now you
have Appendix C in this book which has a list of projects in there. We know that no number that
you put in there today is going to hold for 20 years, and so I think at the...the head of
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Appendix C you should put a wording in there that these are the best guesstimate, estimate
numbers in the year 2012 understanding that inflation, construction costs, other things will
change and that we expect the General Plan Implementation Committee to update these numbers
as time goes on. Give that flexibility to that committee to update that plan internally without
having to go through, re-write the ordinance, having a whole separate implementation plan
outside of the Maui Island Plan. And I beg you please, I don't usually use that word, but I do
beg you to not pass this ordinance now. And I think, according to the time schedule that I saw
for this Committee -CHAIR COUCH: Four minutes.
MR. MAYER: --and from the General Plan Committee --I'll just finish this sentence-- General Plan
Committee, you have enough days now because you've been very good in getting through the
schedule, I think you'll have time before the end of the year to pass this Chapter as well as the
whole plan. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Mayer. Members, any questions for the testifier? I have I guess the
same question I had with I think it was Ms. de Naie, what's the difference with...I mean, we
already have pretty much everything in the Maui Island Plan, we just want to put it in essentially
a separate binder and make it a separate entity. We would have to go through if you, along your
logic, we would have to go through the planning commission and the GPAC again if we go with
it now. I mean, it's the same language, same everything moved to a different book essentially so
there's no...what makes you think it has to go back to GPAC and Planning Committee?
MR. MAYER: Well, there's two separate things. One is this ordinance itself is changing the Land Use
Code, really the General Plan Code itself so that ordinance that you're now adopting I believe
would have to go to GPAC, go to the planning commissions, three of them to...because you are
amending the County's major Land Use Code, the land use regulations, the General Plan
Ordinance. So that would have to go back. Then secondly, the implementation plan itself would
have to be drafted probably by the Staff or you could use this one if they want to, use this one...
CHAIR COUCH: That's the whole point is we're using this one.
MR. MAYER: Well, my guess is then why not just pass it now? If that's the case, if you're just taking
it out and, and saying we're going to pass it as a separate law, that would mean you'll have to
have a whole set of more of Council Committee meetings to discuss it. It'll have to go out, in the
same way you're doing now, to the probably the General Plan Committee. You'll have a whole
series of more meetings and it, it just will duplicate all the efforts rather than including it at this
stage, and I don't think you're going to take more than two, two meetings actually to pass it. I
don't think this is a long thing. You'll have it done. If that's...if you're talking about taking the
same Chapter 9 just put out separately then I think you can just go ahead and pass it now.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
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MR. MAYER: And, and the Appendix C which is the list of Capital Improvement Projects.
CHAIR COUCH: Yeah. That's a separate. Okay. Thank you. Members, any further questions?
Hearing none, thank you, Mr. Mayer.
MR. MAYER: Mr. Pontanilla had.
CHAIR COUCH: Oh. I'm sorry. I didn't see. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I know, Dick, you and I had this discussion in regards to
Chapter 9 and, but Appendix C, the money part, and if, if we move this thing out, I don't know
how it's going to impact our overall General Plan and the Maui Island Plan. Because you know,
like you say, the Appendix C, you know, you can go on for...we don't know if it's going to
happen. We don't know if we going get the money anyway but again, you know, removing it is
a concern I know with you and some of the Committee Members. Maybe when as we bring out
this PC-39 out, you know, I want some discussion on Appendix C in regards to how, how, how
the money part is going be implemented when we do implement the Maui Island Plan. I know
it's just an estimate but I look at the numbers, I get scared. Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Dick.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Members.
MR. MAYER: Is that a question or not?
CHAIR COUCH: No, I guess not.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Just a comment.
CHAIR COUCH: Alright. Thank you, Mr. Mayer.
MR. MAYER: Thank you very much.
CHAIR COUCH: Anybody else want to come up and testify? Last chance. Alright, Members, seeing
nobody rushing to the podium, without objection, we'll close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
ITEM NO. 39: IMPLEMENTATION OF THE GENERAL PLAN (CC 12-143)
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Members, we're going to talk a little bit...we're going to recess in just a
second to set up the, the wall, unless you can do that while we're talking, Kim. Okay. The
purpose of this proposed bill as I mentioned at the beginning is to delete the implementation
program component of the Maui Island Plan and community plans and establish it as a
- 14 -
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Countywide implementation plan. What I'd like to do is have Mr. Summers or Mr. Spence tell
us a little bit about why and what the implications of this are. Mr. Summers.
MR. SUMMERS: Sure. Thank you. I would like to reiterate that fundamentally the purpose of this is
to, as Committee Chair Couch noted, to simply take the implementation chapter which is
Chapter 9 out of the Maui Island Plan binder and place it in a separate binder so that it can be
used to look at prioritization across our various planning documents. And I think everybody the
Department, the Long Range staff certainly feel that Chapter 9 is extremely important. The
implementation plan is one of the most important parts of our General Plan document, but we
have to remember that the fundamental purpose of the implementation plan is to ensure that our
planning documents, the Maui Island Plan and all the community plans are financially
responsible. And the only way that's going to...we're going to achieve that objective or achieve
that most effectively is if we can prioritize across our planning documents. If we're just looking
at, at the Maui Island Plan and we're creating a list of actions and we're doing prioritization and
we're looking at Molokai and Lanai separately, as well as the other community plans, it's going
to be difficult or, or less practical in terms of coming up with something that is financially
feasible across planning documents, across our General Plan. So, that's, that's really the
fundamental purpose is asking that question how can we best achieve prioritization? And the
Staff felt that that could best occur by making this a Countywide document. When you look at
Chapter 9 there are three critical components that's spelled out in 2.80B. The first is a Capital
Improvement element. We do have that language. It essentially addresses regional
infrastructure systems as currently proposed in the, in the Maui Island Plan. The second critical
component is a financial element and it says the language essentially states, describe a fiscally
sound financial program for identified actions and Capital Improvements. So we've laid out
a...provided a strategy including different types of financing that can be used for something like
this. And, and Staff felt it was more appropriate to have that conversation when we're talking
about revenue bonds or impact fees and the like to have that conversation not within each of our
community plan documents but looking at it from a Countywide level. So that's the second
component that we think lends itself more to a Countywide perspective. And then the third issue
is the implementation schedule, that's the third component in Chapter 9, that's in Appendix C.
And as was noted, with that particular component, it is important to have some flexibility
because we know that costs are going to change. We know that implementing agencies might
change. So we have to, we have to be sure that, that we've got this thing structured so that it's
practical. We do have some language in the current bill that states that the budget has to comport
with the General Plan to the extent practical, so we do have some, some language there that
helps. But really the purpose of this is not to weaken our planning process; it's to strengthen the
planning process. The purpose is to resolve one of the fundamental criticisms of previous
planning efforts and of the Maui Island Plan which was we have all these actions, how are we
going to effectively prioritize this? How are we going to fund it? And the thought was well, to
maximize the utility of this, that can best be achieved if it's a separate document that can be
updated as the Molokai Community Plan is done, as the Lanai Community Plan is done, and the
other community plans.
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CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Thank you. Members, I'm going to ask a couple real quick questions just
because it was brought up in testimony, and then we'll open the floor for questions. You've
heard it said that it may have to go back to the planning commissions and, and GPACs. What's,
what's your thoughts on that if we were to pull this out and, and make it its own separate plan?
MR. SUMMERS: There, there's two different issues and I'll defer to James on the issue of whether this
is a land use ordinance, but from the perspective of whether this will have to go back to General
Plan Advisory Committees that's...in order to adopt the Chapter that currently in the Maui Island
Plan as a separate document, that's, that was not the intent of, of this. This document's been
vetted thoroughly by the General Plan Advisory Committee, by the Planning Commission. It's
had a lot of input from the public. That being said, as, as the Plan is amended and updated then
there would be some vetting through the processes that we have in place, so we, we didn't see
this impeding the timely adoption of Chapter 9.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. So the same...if, if there's an update to the Maui Island Plan, it would have to
go through the same process anyway.
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. SUMMERS: If we're, if we're going to do an update of the Maui Island Plan ten years from now
then it would have to go back to the GPAC for consideration.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Before we bring it up to...I would like to see if the Budget Director since we
have him here has any comments on this because it kind of affects...I mean when we, when we
do a budget amendment or we create the budget, we also change several ordinances and this
would be a second or a third or a fourth thing we would have to change. So if you could speak to
how this might affect that process, I'd appreciate it.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and good afternoon, Members. As I'm the Budget Director and not
really involved with planning so much, I've had to learn quite a bit about the, the process of
General Plan and how things are, are I guess supposed to work and how they're actually
working. You know, as we develop the budget and we present the budget each year on behalf of,
you know, the Mayor's proposed budget there items are a part of a six year Capital Improvement
Plan that has been part of the Charter in existence and that six year Capital Improvement Plan
takes into account a lot of different factors. It's main factor is priority of items that are existing
in identified needs of the departments and the funding levels that are available at the current
time. As the Members are aware, every year that we introduce the proposed budget, there are
changes to that six year CIP plan. There are changes in the plan from the time that the Mayor
produces the budget to the time that it comes out of Council, sometimes significant changes,
different ideas of, of funding options and levels and different things like that. The economic
factors that come into play make a big part of how quickly we implement the plan and, and the,
the decisions that are made in that factor. So, you know, having an implementation plan, I guess
-16-
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having an idea, you know, if you look at Appendix C now, there are things that have been
identified in that that, you know, may or not, may or may not be relevant from the time that they
were introduced a number of years ago when the Appendix C was, was originally produced.
And I, I've just glanced through there again, you know, as the testimony was going through, and
I'm looking at some of these projects, going well, we either did that one or this one's, you know,
off the drawing boards or different things like that. And I guess it's difficult for me from the
Budget Director perspective to understand how a General Plan can direct the Capital funding and
Projects for 20 to 30 years. 1, I understand definitely the need to identify, you know, capacities
and, and you know, looking back at what--what is it?--Chapter 8, you know, 8.5, 8.6, it starts
talking about the General Plan, looking at what the General Plan is supposed to be doing, I can
see where it crosses this, this need of wanting to know, you know, what...identify what the
future needs are of the County based on population and all these things and trying to make an
educated guess on, you know, what the funding levels are. I would, I would suppose that, you
know, the Council member sitting here 20 years ago thinking that we would actually be having a
100, $100 million a year Capital Budget would be very scared and think that there's no way we
would have a $100 million a year Capital Budget. And so from, you know, 15 years from now
or 17 years from now in 2030 to understand okay, well, what is our Capital Budget size going to
be and you know, what is the capacity of the, the County to sustain, you know, with, with this
increased population, you know. So my discussion can get way deep into the whole General
Plan itself, but as it aligns to the funding levels, it's a difficult thing. I in...like I said, not
understanding a lot about the General Plan process, I support your, your discussion about
bringing this implementation plan out of the Island Plan and the community plans up to a level
where it, it is reviewed as like a separate document. It is something that we can review, amend,
and you know, as...you know, if it's a matter of looking at this as a, from a budgetary
perspective from a Council level, you know, it wouldn't be that much more difficult to... for us to
produce another bill for an ordinance when, when we do either the annual proposed budget or we
do the, any budget amendment throughout the year to add, you know another bill for an
ordinance to amend whatever this Code is or whatever this ordinance is so that we can change it
as we have the need for Capital Improvement changes. If it's something that needs to go back to,
you know, a planning committee or some other group every single time then, you know, yeah, I
can see it being muddled up with that kind of thing, and as a Council you wouldn't be able to
actually execute the, the requirements of funding projects that are needed to in the future. So just
some initial discussion.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Baz. Okay, Members, opening up the floor to questions.
We'll start with the Vice-Chair first.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Yes. Thank you very much, Chair. And this is really a great discussion

and it's something that, you know, I think is really important. First of all, my
understanding is not so...I don't want the impression that the reason we're doing this is
because we gotta get this done. That's really not what's driving us here. What is driving
us here is what makes sense. And after listening to Mr. Baz, I kind of understand what I
think, is, is what we're trying to achieve. And that is according to this implementation
section or this law or whatever it is we're going to have in a separate binder, annually
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along with the third quarter budget implementation reports, we'll be looking at what is
really happening and what is really needed. And then from that it also says that you will
then formulate our CIP budget for the upcoming year, and it's based and it has to be in
sync with what is going to come out of this implementation plan which is then part of the
General Plan and not so much a part of the Maui Island Plan. We also talked about this
when we were talking about making this proposal was that it would be much easier to,
like Mr. Baz was saying, to amend the implementation plan without getting into
amending the Maui Island Plan. We'd pretty much like to leave the Maui Island Plan
unless we have to and that's a much bigger process. Is that the understanding? I want to
make sure, Chair that this is what I understand.
CHAIR COUCH: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Maybe Planning and Mr. Baz. Mr. Baz, this is how you would
formulate your CIP budget?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, thank you. Let me take a half a step back and -VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Sure.
MR. BAZ: --explain how we formulate the CIP budget currently.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: That would be helpful.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. As the Budget Office, in fact, we're preparing instructions right now to send
out for Fiscal Year '14 if you can imagine that. The...what we do is we are looking at
the, the six year CIP plan, what has been proposed by the departments, what has been
approved by Council for Fiscal Year '13 and looking at how it ties into the needs as the
departments see for the near future. Last year was the first time that they were ever
asked...I had, I had the Department's as they were developing their Capital Project
recommendations, they were requested to identify whether or not it fit into the draft Maui
Island Plan.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Perfect.
MR. BAZ: And that's something that, you know -VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Perfect.
MR. BAZ: --I saw when we first came into office that there needed to be some kind of synchronization
there.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Yes.

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 30, 2012

MR. BAZ: Whether it's in, in Code or whether it's in practice, I think there still needs to be the
coordination there, and so, as the departments proposed Projects, that was one of the criteria that
was reviewed, you know, by myself, by the Mayor, and looking at, you know, what are the, the
foreseeable needs of the community and how does our Capital Projects tie into that. And then,
you know, from there then we, we develop okay, well, how much money do we have and, you
know, what, what can we afford to do? What is the priority as far as timewise? What's ready to
do now and that kind of stuff.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: So, it sounds to me like you're one step ahead of us already, because you've
already seen the connection between the planning and between the budget.
MR. BAZ: I wouldn't say that but we're trying the best we can, you know, making sure that the County
is trying to really look towards the future is something that we're, you know, it's important for us
to do.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: So, what I'm hearing then is that there would be no objection to us doing it this
way and I hear your support.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Like I said, whether it's in Code or just in practice, we're going to do the same things
anyway.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. It's important that we tie planning to budget obviously; otherwise,
what's the sense of having a plan? Because you know, we gotta figure out how we're going to
spend our money and what order, but I think we also realize that flexibility is really, really
important and I wondered if Planning had any comments along that line?
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you. Yes. We think that by moving it into a separate, stand-alone document
it will make the document more practical and flexible. In addition, it forces better coordination
between Planning and the Budget Office and probably across other agencies as well. And then
lastly, I think it really pushes the prioritization process which is really the key to making sure
that we have a fiscally responsible planning system. We, we approach this...it, it didn't matter
how many actions we had as long as there was strong prioritization, so we need, we need this but
we think it could be more effective if it's a stand-alone document.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Well, it's really important to me and I know it is to my colleagues.
You know, we have spent immense amount of hours, times, and money, and a whole bunch of
people have done this to come up with a plan about the things we'd like to see happen in our
community. And I think we have to approach the funding and the prioritization just as seriously
because otherwise, it's just another plan. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. So I gotta believe that when you look at the
implementation of this particular process that all of the directors of this County will be meeting,
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setting priorities based on what has been discussed to move forward on the Maui Island Plan and
how, how will the Administration prioritize the requirements because we can borrow only so
much money.
MR. SPENCE: Mr. Pontanilla, that's the way I see it that, as sort of a function of the Planning
Department that, you know, we would be coordinating with the different directors, the different
departments on what way they want to go with, you know, with this part of the General Plan and
then coordinating with Mr. Baz or whoever the Budget Director is at that time, you know,
towards formulating the budget and presenting it to the Council.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Comment?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. I think I understand what you're asking, you know, being the Budget Chair of
this Council for many years, you've understand this process intimately, and understanding that
what the County Departments are doing as far as reviewing the, the Island Plan, the community
plans in how they are setting priorities is going to be very important and while...
CHAIR COUCH: Short recess. . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

2:37 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:47 p.m.

CHAIR COUCH: . . . (gavel). . . The Planning Committee meeting of July 30 th will come back to order.
Sorry about that, we had a little power issue down here, power failure issue and we are back.
Before we were so rudely interrupted, I was, I believe Joe had some questions and you want to
finish?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Sandy was trying to answer it.
CHAIR COUCH: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: That was too long of a break. Excuse me. So, Member Pontanilla, if I recollect, you were,
you were asking about the process of how the department directors would be either held
accountable or utilizing the General Plan and, and the, you know, the sequence of, of products
that are being produced here in developing the budget process. Is that correct?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. The prioritization of any Capital Improvement Project
for a fiscal year and on top of that, how are we going to handle the added cost for repair and
maintenance that is not included? Because that is also a big number.
MR. BAZ: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair and Member Pontanilla, that, that's...you know, those are
really critical key points to how we go through our process of developing the budget and trying
to figure out, you know, what, you know, from a... from my perspective, what are, Mayor's
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proposed budget is as we present to the Council. As Mr. Spence mentioned, you know, his, his
responsibility as Planning Director is to take this, this plan that's been produced, this idea of
what, what we're going to be looking for in the future, what our needs are going to be in the
future, and working with the Department Directors to help establish their plans and make sure
that their idea of what their planning to produce in the Capital Budget is, is in line with that. And
then as it comes to my office and to the Mayor, that's really where the prioritization and the
funding, you know, comes into play because we only have so much money. One of the, the
things that, you know, we're developing here is, you know, the level of debt service that is, that
we can carry the amount, you know, we do have a debt service limit that is set in the Ordinance.
It's 12 percent of the County budget, right, so you know, we gotta make sure that we're,
we're...our debt capacity makes it so that we're not spending more than 12 percent of the
County's budget on debt. Well, that means that we need to, to project out okay, well, what is the
budget going to be? What is our annual budget going to be for many years to come? What is
the, the cost of that debt? Is it something that, you know, we can have...be able to carry? Is it
something that, you know, we should be raising taxes and, and paying more cash for and that
kind of stuff. So once we've developed, you know, that, we're also taking into account, this past
year was the first year they were really asked, which was kind of a hit and miss answer but, you
know, what is it...how is this Capital Project going to affect your operational budget? And that's
really where maintenance comes into the operational budget. And that's something that, you
know, we gotta make sure if we're building buildings that we're able to continue to maintain
them, because no sense we build a building and then, you know, yeah, we built it for 30 years but
in 20 years we haven't maintained it and so it's falling apart. And, and, you know, we gotta
make sure that, you know, it goes down to the engineering of the thing to make sure that, you
know, we have stainless steel hinges in places where there's going to be rust and you know, all
that kind of stuff. But, but the maintenance is an important factor. Right now we don't have a
direct correlation to, you know, maintenance costs of a, of a facility. The departments take, you
know, the cost that they, they have... you know, Parks Department will take, you know, their,
their cost of maintaining their facilities and sort of project out well, if they have a park this size,
they're going to need, you know, this much personnel to maintain it. They're going to need, you
know, this much equipment on a regular basis to keep it going. And this is the cost of fuel and
you know, seed and you know, all that kind of stuff that has been up until this point, just in the
departments' budgets. It's part of their operational costs, okay, so, and that's something that as
we look at maybe say the Parks for example, taking on more parks, you know, is this something,
yes it's a big community need, you know, we need recreational facilities and things like that but
understanding how that's going to affect our personnel levels and our future costs. It is
something that, you know, we're still working on, but it's not necessarily a part of the Capital
Program. The Capital Program that's defined is really that. It's what, what is that Capital
Project going to cost us. As far prioritization goes, once it's in the plan and once it's in our, you
know, from our perspective in the six year CIP plan as you're aware, there's things that come up
that you know either delay a project. We, you know, we had a roadway project in Haiku where
getting the easements of it was not feasible in this time period so we ended up wanting to switch
that out and switch it for a project in Kahului. And that's something that, you know, if it's set in
a plan, you know, that we have to do this roadway, in this year, and that kind of stuff, it makes
it...the flexibility becomes very difficult. And you've heard from the Public Works Director and
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one of the reasons why he likes the Countywide road resurfacing pot of money so well and he
was able to get so much spent and so much done was because of that flexibility. It's a matter of
maintaining our roads on a regular basis, you know, the goal is to, to make sure that we've
repaved this much roads in this much years and you know, we're repaving the roads on a regular
basis. And so with the money available they're doing the best job that they can but setting a
priority level in the plan would make it very difficult for one thing, for the Departments to
implement but then for another thing, you know, each year as, as factors come up that say, okay,
well maybe now is the right time. We got a land owner that's ready to sell, that's going to give
us a good deal on some land that we need for future uses of the County, so now is a great time to
purchase. Well, you know, hey, that may not fit this year's plan for its priority schedule, but it's
something that needs to be, to be flexible enough to be able to take into account. So,
that's...those are some important factors as we develop this, that we need to look at. And as far
as from the funding perspective, it's always something that, you know, we, we have discussions
about and we have, you know, we have healthy discussions on the floor and you know, the
budget of okay well, how should we pay for this project, you know. Is this something that, you
know does have a long term benefit that does make it so that we can...it is a bondable project,
you know, something that's worth paying for for a long period of time or is it something that,
you know, it's more of a maintenance factor then maybe we should be paying cash for it. And,
you know, it goes very much into the, the factor of how much the, the tax base can handle on a
year-by-year basis as well as for the long term. You know, each year the Mayor proposes and
the County Council approves rates, you know, set for Real Property Tax, set for Fuel Tax, and
Weight Tax, and all these other factors that go into what it takes to, to make, put the County
budget together. And so, you know, each year those determinations can be made. You know,
this year there was a determination made to, to pay cash for a lot of the projects that we had
proposed to bond and that's just, that's just the way things work. And you know, I...we'll figure
it out, and we move forward, and we do what we can do. So, I hope that answered your
question.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I...pretty in depth.
MR. BAZ: Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So I see some of the, the projects that are being proposed in this
20 years may not even be realized in 20 years. That's my perception because of the financing of,
you know, what need to be done, yeah. And you know, I appreciate, you know, you going
through that long dissertation, but again, you know, it is a 20-year plan. You look at the
numbers, you look at the project itself. If we do all of the projects that is being proposed, we're
good. We're good. But I see that we may not because of the things that you say. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. And Members, before I move forward, I did...I had
asked a question and I guess it was...could've been taken two different ways and it was taken
the, the way I didn't intend, so let me rephrase the question to Mr. Summers or Mr. Giroux,
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especially Mr. Giroux, I believe. If we change this bill now as it is to what is proposed, does that
have to go back to the planning commission and GPAC?
MR. GIROUX: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, just to address the public testimony and the question has been
asked before, but if 2.80B is modified or, or changed in any way, it does not have to go to the
planning commissions. It's not considered under the Charter as being one of those land use
ordinances that need to go through the planning commission process. The...just for background
so everybody's comfortable is 2.80B has been amended several times and it hasn't gone to the
planning commissions. So, it's, it's been our position for, since the existence of 2.80B that when
you, we're amending it that it is not one of those ordinances that need to go through the planning
commission.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Thank you. Members, any further questions for the Departments or.. .
Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you, Chair. So, with what Mr. Giroux said, I'm
looking at the, our County Code in relation to Planning Department -CHAIR COUCH: Charter?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and the duties thereof. Yeah, the Charter. Chapter 8, Department
of Planning, that whole section, Powers and Duties, General Plan and Community Plans. So, I
mean, I see conflicting terms here and I just want Mr. Giroux I think maybe to put my mind at
ease if, if there really are and if so how is this being addressed. You know, Powers and Duties,
and Functions of Planning Director, number 7, Section 8-8... Section 8-8.3, the reviewing and
proposed CIPs and he or she shall make recommendation of order of priority. So Mr. Baz is here
saying it's in conjunction with everybody which is wonderful, so I'm saying should...does that
need to be revised, rewritten to incorporate such statements that was said today? So, I
just...that's one of the questions but I have others, Chair. Maybe Mr. Giroux, you know, my
initial I guess concern is where, are there conflicting, you know, in what we're working on and
also what's within the Department of Planning's powers, duties, functions, what have you in the
Code.
CHAIR COUCH: Mr. Giroux.
MR. GIROUX: Right. I, I think, I mean from what's been stated and what's written in, in 2.80B and
what's proposed in 2.80B it's not conflicting with that part of the Charter. You know, it's part
and parcel of, of how the Administration has to perform its duties, and everybody at some point
in the process has to look at their duties as part of their function and as these processes come up.
And, and that's what the Planning...2.80B is trying to do is help us create a planning document
that is consistent with the Charter that will help every Director in the, in their duty fulfill a part of
those duties as required by 2.80B and the Charter. So, it's consistent. It, you know, when you
read the Charter sometimes you have to jump from the Charter to the Code back to the Charter,
read the Charter a little bit, jump back to the Code and that's how it works. You have your
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Charter is your over...you know, that's your governing document, and then it allows the Council
to create documents to fill in any gaps in order to make that process work. And that's what
2.80B is; 2.80B is an ordinance that allows, allows the Charter to be implemented, because you
have within the Charter, it talks about your General Plan; it talks about your land use ordinances;
it talks about your Planning Director's duties, and 2.80B helps, helps all of those mesh and be in
one document. So, it's not conflicting. To make it short and sweet, it's not conflicting.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And one more follow-up, Chair
CHAIR COUCH: Certainly.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So moving further in the Section 8-8.5, item 3 in regards to
Planning Director's implementation and enforcement. So now here what's at hand is we're
deleting "enforcement" so how...for me I see a big difference there.
MR. GIROUX: Yeah. And again this is a really good example because the fact that 2.80B might not
say enforcement does not take away the responsibility from the Director to report on that and to
do it. It...2.80B is below the Charter, so it...as far as a conflict the fact that 2.80B would be
silent doesn't take that away from the Charter. When you read the Charter if it says that's what
the Director has to do, he has to do it. Just because 2.80B doesn't have it, there could be another
Code somewhere else, in some other document that says this is how he's going to report it and,
and that's just...it's just a matter of where, where in the law or where in the process does he do
that. In no way does it take away from his requirement to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So 2.80B can be less, you know, less restrictive or you know what I
mean?
MR. GIROUX: Yeah. There's...we... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It can't be more than the, the Charter but it can't be...it can be less.
It cannot state what's in the Charter. I can't reiterate.
MR. GIROUX: Right. This is complicated. I'll try to explain it really simply is that first of all, you
have to state is it or is it not a conflict? If it, if the Charter requires a person to do more than,
than what the Code requires then they have to do the more.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. GIROUX: If it requires them...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. I mean, I see. I just don't see the harm in reiterating once
again -MR. GIROUX: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --so that's just my comments. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. And along those line, Mr. Giroux, if you look at Section 8-8.4 about the
appropriate planning commission shall, number 2, review the General Plan and...I'm sorry,
number 3, review other proposed land use ordinances and amendments thereto prepared by the
Director or Council and after public hearings, is that, is this considered a land use ordinance or
amendment thereto?
MR. GIROUX: No. We haven't considered 2.80B as being a land use ordinance and I think the
confusion is that 2.80B basically gives a process of how to process a land use ordinance. It is not
in and of itself the land use ordinance.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. GIROUX: So, it's a...you're amending a process, you're not making a...making a change to
2.80B doesn't change the use of a piece of property. So, that's how -CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. GIROUX: --it's been interpreted in the past and again, just to reiterate, there's been several
changes to 2.80B and we have not had to go through the process of taking 2.80B to the planning
commissions.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Members, any further questions for the Departments? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Maybe for Mr. Baz in regards to this implementation plan. So,
if we go ahead and, and you know, give the Departments the ability to implement the plan then
basically the Council Members will be giving up some oversight in regards to the operating
budget? CIPs included.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, thank you. From my understanding, the Chapter 9 of the Maui County
Code... Maui County Charter would, would override any process as far as what's required of the
Administration and Council when it relates to the Capital Budget. The way that I'm reading this
is the implementation plan would be a part of the development of the Capital Program Budget,
something that is then, you know, introduced by the Mayor and, and voted on by Council. So
not necessarily...I mean, to a certain extent it would make my life easier if the implementation
plan was set forward, this is the next 20 years, this is what we're going to do--boom--and then
we just do it. It'd make my life a lot simpler but I'm fairly certain that's not the way that the
process would work or is intended to work. You know, in that, in that light, you know, no matter
what's in the implementation plan that's set forward, as the, the Council adopts the
implementation plan it is something that needs to be, as we mentioned before, flexible on an
ongoing basis not even annually. As, as you're, you're aware, Mr. Chair, we introduce budget
amendments for, you know, Capital Projects that we have emergencies that we need to do. You
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know, we just had some pipes break at War Memorial Gymnasium and you know, so, we're
going to have figure out how to, how to, you know, process that and we may have to speed up
some, some ideas that we have for that kind of a facility. So, you know, that kind of thing
happens and we would not want to restrict the Administration or the Council from being able to
adapt to those kind of situations.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Thank you. And that brings up a whole raft of questions that I have that we
just kind of, we brought up a little bit at the recess. We have Appendix C right now in the Maui
Island Plan which is basically the schedule. This bill would move Appendix C to, to essentially
be an appendices, an appendix to the implementation plan. Is that correct, Mr. Summers or
Mr. Spence?
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Now, when we have dollar amounts in the Appendix C, that...and it's part of
this implementation plan is now part of the General Plan, Mr. Giroux, if we were to change those
dollar amounts, that would have to go back to the GPACs or the Planning Committee? Is that
correct?
MR. GIROUX: That's a real technical issue because as far as what is going to be required to be in the
implementation plan is, is really important and it needs to be made clear and spelled out. I think
that the, the, the nature of the implementation plan containing specific dollar amounts creates an
issue, because we, we're in a, we're in a floating economy. We're, we're...and so, there, there's
an issue of approximation, you know, you're trying to approximate, and just because you
approximate wrong, it's just an issue of how wrong are you. You know what I mean, if you
approximate $10 and it cost 100,000 you might want to go back there and, and make some
changes, but that's not going to mean that you're stuck to, to that estimate. I mean you're...it's
an estimate; that's what it is. I think there is room enough in, in some of the portions of the plan
that say "about", you know, "approximate", you know, and again, it's you're doing your best
guess with the best information that you have at the time, because we don't know about inflation;
we don't know about, you know, huge changes in the economy or war breaks out. So these types
of things that I don't think...as you're making your budget you're not going to be looking back
and saying well, we need to change that because that's already an estimate. But there's other
things that you can take into account as being a report as far as not having it part of your
implementation plan but having it as an annual report to update, you know, update the -CHAIR COUCH: The status.
MR. GIROUX: --the status and information of where we are. You know, how, how, how accurate are
we? It's kind of the like the population, you know, just because in your General Plan there's a,
there's a census and an estimate about how many people are going to be on the island, just
because you're wrong, you're not going to go back and you know, change the estimate; you're
-26-

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 30, 2012

going to go forward. You're going to...you know, just because there is a projected number of
people to be on Maui in the year 2030 doesn't mean that you're stuck with that. At some time
we're going to have to deal with the reality of what, how many people are on this island. We're
going to have to accommodate that.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Mr. Summers, follow up on that, please.
MR. SUMMERS: Yes. Thank you. And I would just like to reiterate that the language used in the
Charter is estimated costs so that it suggests that, that these estimates are just that, they're
estimated costs. I'd like to note also that in the, in the Appendix C, the implementation program
there's specific language on every page that reads implementation of the actions listed in this
table are subject to available funding. The estimated cost and proposed timing of each action
may be revised as new information is obtained. So it's really a matter of this type of language
that makes the system more practical and flexible as well as the language in 2.80B that suggests
to the extent practical that I think it becomes a manageable system which is what everybody
wants to achieve.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. That, that scares me a little bit and then I'll go to Mr. White. That scares me a
little bit. It says in there it can change but if it changes, if we change things in that list then that
has to go to Planning Committee, right? I mean, planning commission. I guess that's a question
for Mr. Giroux. Even though it says in the Appendix that it's subject to change and availability
of funds and whatever the language was -MR. GIROUX: Yeah.
CHAIR COUCH: --if we make those changes we still have to go to the planning commission.
MR. GIROUX: And again, I think it's going to be an issue of urgency, you know, because sometimes
change happens suddenly, sometimes change happens over time. And I think eventually it's just
going to have to become a judgment call of if does the document, is the document so off or so
unusable that you will want to change it. And if it really is becoming that bad, I think there's
going to be a foreseeability factor that you'll start sending it off to the, the printers. You know,
it's a...it's going to be part of the process.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. GIROUX: It's not going to go away but it shouldn't stop the government from doing its essential
functions, like Sandy said, you know, pipes breaks unexpectedly. Well, we're going to have to
look at that and adjust.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. GIROUX: But these, most of these adjustments should be foreseeable. So, it's going to, I mean
it's going...the answer is is that if you absolutely want to change this document, you will have to
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use the process of an amendment. The question is is it going to be necessary to amend it in order
to get -CHAIR COUCH: Right.
MR. GIROUX: --the function of government done?
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Mr. White, you had a question.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. Mr. Giroux just hit on the, my biggest concern is if we have to
go back through any kind of a process to amend a financial portion then I think that's going to be
a real challenge. Because you know, during budget, you know, we've got to deal with the
monies that are available, and if the, if the intent of this section is to, is to force the hand to make
sure that we do all these things regardless of what the, the inflow of cash is going to be then
that's going to require us to increase property taxes to cover the, the amount that they're
requesting or the amount that it's going to take to fulfill the implementation chapter. I think it
needs to be clear in the document that, that this is a guideline to give us an indication of what the,
the level of importance, the prioritization that the GPAC and other members of the community
have placed on these items, but I don't think it's workable for us to have to go back and amend
that part of the plan just because of the budget. Because the budget is going to constrain us every
single year and nothing we do in this plan can technically bind any future Councils because of
that specific thing.
CHAIR COUCH: Yeah. That was the, that was the next question.
MR. GIROUX: And I can address that, Chair. If you look at the 3.04.020 regarding our budget, this is
what it says about the General Plan in Section C; it says preparation of the operating budget and
Capital Program shall implement to the extent practicable the County's General Plan and enacted
pursuant to Chapter 2.80B of this Code. So the Code in and of itself takes into account -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Uh-huh.
MR. GIROUX: --that flexibility and that sovereignty of, of this Council to make those hard decisions in
those hard times to, to make sure that government does function.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. But I think, Chair, the importance is that we, we've gone through
and we've come up with all kinds of things we want to do, we feel is very important; we agree
on a lot of things moving forward, but to think that we have to add another level of work to go
back and amend the plan which is supposed to just be a guide in order to change the budget or to
address the existing levels of funding that are available I think is just creating an unnecessary
level of, of work and responsibility.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Members, any other comments or questions? Mr. Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. So if I understand all that has been said to this point,
separating this document just gives us where a simplistic point of view, an opportunity to make
changes when necessary and not tie it into the General Plan. Am I making it too simple?
MR. GIROUX: That might be too simplistic.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I just want to get to the point so the public... ` cause the public's -MR. GIROUX: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --listening to this and I can't figure it out.
MR. GIROUX: The document, the way the, the way the amendment is written -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. GIROUX: --the document is still called out as being part of the General Plan. And that's in
paragraph 2.80B.030, Section B.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh. Okay.
MR. GIROUX: So, that underlined section that has "and implementation plan makes sure that this
implementation plan is part of the General Plan. It is just a separate section of the General Plan
and our General Plan has several parts. It has the Policy Plan; that's part one -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. GIROUX: --the Maui Island Plan, that's part two; the community plans, six, seven, eight, nine
parts -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. GIROUX: --the implementation plan and what that implementation plan the...where it is now in
the current, current ordinance is developed in the Island Plan portion -CHAIR COUCH: The Maui Island Plan.
MR. GIROUX: of the Maui Island Plan. And the Maui Island Plan doesn't include Molokai and Lanai.
So by separating it out, it becomes more inclusive. It includes all of Maui County in that plan
so...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Now, I think everybody can understand that. All the other stuff
was just a prelude to just...if you wanted to say that, well, just say it. Thank you.
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MR. GIROUX: I had to use the legalese.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, you had everybody going east, south, and west at the
same time. But thank you, Mr. Giroux, you have made it perfectly clear and I think now myself
and the public thoroughly understands what we're trying to do here. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Mr. Spence.
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think to...going along with this discussion and, and
Member White's comments that, you know, we don't want to have to go back through a whole
other amendment process, you know, as times change and whatever, you know, the world
economies, county economies, economic conditions change. We need the flexibility to, to be
able to respond in a lot quicker manner, you know, and then to, of course, include Molokai and
Lanai. The...a lot of the purpose of this is to provide that flexibility and not have to...you know,
there'll be some things we should tweak perhaps, but to provide that flexibility that we don't
have to go through another six year process to, you know, meet the annual budget needs in
filling, you know, 2.80B. So we're trying to build some flexibility into it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, throughout...Chair, if I may?
CHAIR COUCH: Certainly.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Throughout this whole plan and we've said it many times, you
know, and the...including Molokai and Lanai is actually the real reason we doing this 'cause
that, you know, just to make it all inclusive. But throughout the plan we've always said where
financially or fiscally possible or prudent or, you know, used many terms, but we've always had
that fiscal part put in it because of the fact that we all understood if we say we're going to start
taking care of our schools and fiscally we couldn't or we cannot take care of all our waste
treatment plants and we couldn't or changes came from EPA and said tomorrow everything has
to be gutted and started all over, oh wow, now the plan may go to pot, right. So, the bottom line
in all this is we just really separating 'ern, just a, gives us the opportunity to include Lanai and
Molokai in this whole implementation part of the plan. And that's basically the bottom line in all
of this. And so, and it doesn't change the implementation that was in the plan now we're moving
it out of the Island Plan and actually making it a separate component.
MR. SPENCE: That would be correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That would be correct. Okay. I got it. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Mister... Chair Mateo and then Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This has been, this has been rather
difficult. This is like clear as mud for me, you know, 'cause I'm like one of those inquiring
minds, I need to know. And what we're doing does not tell me. For me, it's like, you know,
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listening to Mr. Summer [sic] when he started his comments early in the meeting and he
referenced that one of the directives is to be assured that plans and priorities are financially
feasible. And the escape to that need to be sure that it's financially feasible is that term we keep
using in the document "to the extent practicable". You know, so, you got, you got a big loophole
that you not telling us nothing. My fear is that we're already moving through a process
approving all these chapters...for example, in the Maui Island Plan we don't know what it's
going to cost us. And it's great to tie in planning with budget but for me, I mean, the dollar
value, what it's going to cost us to move forward, that is an important component to me.
Because I don't like giving all these people who work on these plans all these years false
impressions that something is actually going to be done when in reality, to the extent practicable.
What the hell that mean? That mean it may never get done? You know, so I have, I have
specific issues with this because my difficulty is in not knowing what it's going to cost this, this
County in the next few years to implement a whole slew of well-intended, I guess, items. And
also on Page 9, G, the reference to Molokai and Lanai's General Plan Advisory Committee, we
don't have one. We have a Community Plan Advisory Committee and they, that committee also
serves as our islandwide, our plan is also the islandwide plan so, you know, I just look at this and
you know, this is like a bad rash. You know, this has got to go away. So, with that, I've given
you my two cents, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And just to reiterate, this is still, this language is in the
current Maui Island Plan and we're trying to get overreaching for all the plans.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I got it.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And please take care of that rash, Mr. Mateo. So, my
thing, okay, I get the big picture how we want to give more of a voice to Molokai, Lanai, and
what have you. But again, discussion earlier with Mr. Giroux as in I'm looking at the Charter
trying to reference it to the Code, and we can be less I guess strict, I mean he's saying it's not
going to override the responsibilities and powers and duties that are in the Charter itself For me,
I don't see why it's being taken out then. I don't see why it can't just follow suit, and the
verbiage and wording and intentions can just, you know, be, be stated once again and reiterated
once again. You know, I see how on the State level we, the County can be more strict than but
we can't be less strict. I would personally like to continue the, the verbiage of enforcement and
implementing, and things of that nature, you know, on --where am I?-- Page 3, item lc and we're
deleting, you know this element shall include a general schedule and identify implementing
agencies and persons. I see no reason why we shouldn't be, you know, saying that. And then
again on Page 5, item J, it'll be new item J from I, Status Reports, people mentioned, you know,
that the word "enforcement" is being taken out here. It is in line with the Charter and I'd like to
continue to say, yes, we want this enforcement of General Plan and community plans, not just
some annual status report given to us and we say, oh, alright. You know, for me, that stuff s
important and it needs to be carried throughout and, and highlighted in the Charter in regards to
community plans, you know, each community plan shall include implementing actions, clearly
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identified priorities, timelines, estimated costs, and the County department accountable for the
completion of implementing actions. I mean, I really like that. So, that's just my concern. I
don't know, Department, Mr. Giroux, and whoever, that's my four cents added in for
Mr. Mateo's two cents.
MR. GIROUX: Chair, I...
CHAIR COUCH: Go ahead.
MR. GIROUX: Just real quickly as far as the, you know, the status reports. It's...in the Charter it's the
Planning Director who reports on the enforcement. In this one, the, it says each agency, so
basically, you would be asking every County department to be filing reports, and if it's not
required by the Charter, I think it, as an issue of I mean, this Council probably sees hundreds
and hundreds and hundreds of reports and every permit that needs a report back and those types
of things. To have it consolidated within, you know, one, one agency or one person to do that
simplifies and streamlines government. It doesn't mean it's not going to get done; it just means
that one person would be responsible for it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Giroux. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: And Ms. Cochran, just so you know that, you know, your section where you
mentioned Page 3, section c, this element shall include general schedule, et cetera -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Hm.
CHAIR COUCH: That's all spelled out in Page 4, number H 3 in more specific terms, so that's why it's
deleted from that one section and moved to the bigger section so it's more specifically spelled
out. As far as the enforcement, it's not that it's not being enforced, it's each agency shall prepare
a status report on its implementation of the General Plan to...if you read the whole sentence and
parse it, it goes all the way down, it says, to the Mayor and the Council. So we're going to
get...both the 9 th floor and the 8 th floor is going to get the status report and that's where it's up to
us to determine whether they've done the right implementation and enforcement. Because they,
I mean, if they don't implement it, I mean, what is there to enforce? There's no penalties. When
you have enforcement, you gotta have penalties. When there's no set penalties, and correct me if
I'm wrong, Staff or Mr. Giroux, when you talk about enforcement it's actually somebody going
out there and doing a Notice of Violation. In the General Plan the, the departments have to
actually do the enforcement. They have to say, no, you can't do this because it's not according
to the General Plan. That's what the enforcement is and that's where we're...it's the same as the
implementation. No one's going out there, going to give a Notice of Violation to somebody for
not following the General Plan. They're not going get their permit or we're going to get a report
that says they got their permit because of this. Is that, is that...is that your take on it?
MR. SPENCE: I'll answer part of that and then I'll let mister ... (adjusts microphone)... as a part of the
CIP we're going to repair these. The...part of enforcement is, I mean everybody, everybody
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seems to think that enforcement is just, you know, somebody's doing something contrary to their
zoning or their SMA Permit or something and we, we go out and cite them. Enforcement is also
a lot of what one of my divisions does, Zoning and Enforcement, when plans come in for
Building Permits, we're checking to see if they're complying with conditions of permits or
conditions of...well, it could be like an SMA Permit, Special Use Permit to see if they're
following the conditions or the standards of zoning, you know, the setbacks are correct and those
kinds of things. So that' a critical portion of enforcement. The...we just don't think of it as
enforcement because there's nobody out, you know, writing tickets or whatever. The...so, in
enforcing the General Plan, you know, Council will say, grant zoning, Conditional Zoning put
conditions on that. You know, in order for the, for the Council to grant zoning to somebody they
have to find compliance with the General Plan and the community plan. So in that sense as land
use developments or permits come forward, we enforce in that way and we're therefore
enforcing the General Plans and the community plans. It's not, you know, we don't, we don't
issue Notices of Violation for you know, you're not building your wastewater treatment plant in
a timely manner or you know, those kinds of things. It comes as, as things are being
implemented through the annual budget, through land use entitlement requests, those kinds of
things.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. So, Mr. Spence, thank you for that. And this is a follow-up to that to either
Mr. Summers, Mr. Spence, or Mr. Giroux or all three. Does it matter whether or not we have
that word and...those two words "and enforcement"? And it doesn't matter, I don't mind
leaving it in. I mean, there isn't going to be a difference. That's just sort of semantic thing or is
there a legal issue with that, Mr. Giroux?
MR. GIROUX: Like I said, either, either way. If it's taken out, it still needs to get done. But what
2.80B, it's not saying that the Director has to do enforcement; it's saying that he has to report on
it.
CHAIR COUCH: Correct.
MR. GIROUX: And that's the difference.
CHAIR COUCH: Alright. Any other questions, comments? Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. The question I have is if we have a list of
expenditures in the implementation plan and it's budget time and we want to spend more on one
item, we want to decrease another item, we don't have enough money to address or something's
not quite ready yet to do so we want to zero out one, are we going to have to come back and
amend the implementation plan or not?
CHAIR COUCH: Anybody?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: As, as part of our budget process. Are we adding to the budget process
or is this going to be considered a guide?
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CHAIR COUCH: While they're discussing it, it's my understanding in, in the discussions is that no
matter what the dollar amount is or what the order is they're... we're going to do our budgets
hopefully using that as a guide, I mean definitely using that as a guide, but we're not going to
change. If this item is listed as $20 million...or let's say the police station. The Kihei Police
Station was listed as $40 million and it came in at 27 or vice versa, we're not going to change the
Appendix, we're not going to change the document. We're going to report that hey, this came in
under budget or this came in over budget on the status reports. So, we're not actually physically
changing the
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I understand that. My concern is that with everything else in the
General Plan it has to come back, you know, through a process to change it. It's gotta to go to
the planning commission and I'm concerned because yes, this is now and was considered part of
the General Plan. So I want to hear them say no, you're not going to have to change it. If you
choose to spend more money on preservation and less on roads, I'd like to hear that.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Without going back and changing the budget and going back to
Planning, back to the whole process. I just need...
CHAIR COUCH: And to add on to that, correct me if I'm wrong...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Are you amending my...
CHAIR COUCH: Yeah. I'm amending your question. It doesn't matter...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Let them answer my question first.
CHAIR COUCH: Well, it does it, would it matter whether we did this as is or didn't make any changes?
`Cause I think the question is the same whether we don't do anything to Chapter 9 or we pull
Chapter 9 out in my opinion.
MR. GIROUX: Well, I...yeah, I think the Chair is correct. However, again it's going to be how, how
substantial of a deviation is it. And again, from the language of the I guess Appendix C, you
know, I think that in the future it's going to be an issue of debate. It's going to be an issue of
debate. And basically the reason you have a planning guide is to raise that debate. You know,
how far off are we from our guide? And if you're going to deviate a lot from it, then you'll
probably hear people say well, maybe you should amend your plan. If you're going to totally
a project and not fund it and you haven't funded it for five years, maybe you should go
back and change your General Plan because you're not following it.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. My concern though is we're working on maps now and we have
very specific lines. To move that line three feet over, you have to come back to the Planning
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Commission, back to the Council; it's got to be a community plan amendment; it's got to be a
General Plan amendment. I want to hear somebody say we're not going to have to do that if we
want to spend more money on one thing and less on another. Otherwise, I'm not in favor of
having an implementation section.
CHAIR COUCH: Unfortunately that's required by law at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Then maybe it doesn't have to have numbers in it or something, but to
have to come back through that whole process when we don't have the money or we have extra
money and we want to spend more I think is going to make it very tedious. I can imagine going
through budget.
MR. SPENCE: I share...Member White, I share some of that concern. Perhaps as a part of this we can
look at some language specifically to say that it doesn't have to go for the purposes of this part of
it, this implementation plan, you know, and the report that it goes to the, you know, to the, to the
Budget Chair and excuse me, to the Budget Director and then to the Council, et cetera that it
doesn't have to go through the big long amendment process. You're going to have public input
already, you know, as a part of the budget process -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right. And so people can come and say we want more spent on
preservation. We want less spent over here. So, to me that's where this discussion needs to take
place. It doesn't...if we're going to force ourselves to go back and change the General Plan
document which right now it looks like we would have to then we're just adding layers.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah. I think we should clarify that.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: We're already saying where practical. Well, this ain't practicable as far
as I'm concerned.
CHAIR COUCH: Well, just to remind the Members that regardless of whether this is in the Maui Island
Plan or we pull it out, which is what we're discussing today, your questions are valid for both
`cause it's going -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Either way.
CHAIR COUCH: --to be either way.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
CHAIR COUCH: And that's nothing...we're not working on that today. We're working on should we
pull it out of the Maui Island Plan or leave it in the Maui Island Plan. But, but I agree those are
very difficult questions, but we're going to have to do that regardless where it is, in my opinion.
Is that right, misters?
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, you're just...this bill just pulls it out of the Maui Island Plan -CHAIR COUCH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --but it's still part of the General Plan.
CHAIR COUCH: Correct. Which is we would still have to do that no matter where it is, whether
it's... so, your questions are good for another discussion one way or the other.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, as we're pulling, I'm just wondering how hard we should pull.
CHAIR COUCH: Mr. Summers.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you. I would say that for the same reasons that Councilmember White has
expressed, Chapter 9 if you look at and you look at Appendix C specifically, it was written as a
guidance document. The terms used suggest flexibility. It's similar to the policy language when
you're...earlier in the document and we would debate should we use "shall", should we use
"may"? How, how, rigid do we want this to be? With respect to Chapter 9, it was written in a
way to provide flexibilities. So...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Then tell me, in plain terms that if we want to make a different
decision during budget because of financial, you know, flushness or financial shortages that we
don't have to come back and amend this Chapter or the General Plan, and I'll be satisfied.
MR. SUMMERS: I would say that yes, that's, that's been the intent from day one, if we want to
strengthen the language, if people are confused about that outcome then as Director Spence
indicated we can provide some additional clarifying language, but that, that absolutely has been
the intent from day one with one caveat. Every chapter in the Plan has a list of implementing
actions so if a Council just simply wanted to absolutely strike certain implementing actions,
remove it from the Plan altogether, it was always our, our understanding that that would be,
would trigger an amendment, but changing the dollar figures, reprioritizing that type of thing
wouldn't or shouldn't trigger an amendment. It would be too cumbersome to administer.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I agree.
CHAIR COUCH: I'd like to get that response from Mr. Giroux as well.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I was just going to ask that. Thank you, Chair.
MR. GIROUX: I think to add to the discussion and this might help, I hope it does, is that if you look at
the Charter and this is what Elle brought up earlier is that if you look at the Charter, the Charter
does not require the General Plan, General Plan document or the Island Plan to have an
implementation program. This requirement comes up in the community plan portion of the
Charter. The Charter says that the community plan has to have an element that there's an
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implementation action. Doesn't say implementation program; it says "action". Has to have
certain things and those things are that it's gotta have implementing actions that clearly identify
priority, so that's required in your community plan; timeliness that's required; estimated cost
that's required, and the County department accountable. Those are the three, four things that are
required by Charter to be in your community plan. Those are not required by Charter to be in
your Island Plan or in your General Plan, but 2.80B requires an implementation plan. So, that's
what we're talking about today is that implementation plan, that implementation plan that is not
required by the Charter but it is in 2.80B and it requires it to be in your General Plan document.
So, what we're doing is we're separating that out. We're moving that piece, again not required
by the Charter, we're moving it out of the Island Plan and we're...I mean the Maui Island Plan
and moving it into its own little cubicle and saying that it's now part and parcel of our General
Plan.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I understand that but that doesn't answer my question as to whether or
not we have flexibility...once we put the implementation plan in, do we have the flexibility to
provide funding at levels that we feel are appropriate whether they're over, under or close to
zero?
MR. GIROUX: Yeah. I don't think there's anything that's going to take that power away from the
Council. I mean that, that's already by Charter, you know, the making the Capital Plan and all of
that, it's already, you know, clearly in, in the hands of the Council. And I think your question is
well, okay, that's fine but do we have to go and do another step in the process.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right. That's, see, I agree with you that you can't take that, the funding
power away from the Council, but if we have to vote separately, to go back, if we have to go
back and amend the plan in order to change the expenditure, that's, that's the question.
MR. GIROUX: Yeah. And I don't know if I can answer it definitively today, because the way this is
going to play out is that you are going to get into the community plan process. Once you're into
the community plan process, every community plan and we have about nine of them--six, seven,
eight, nine--eight, we have eight community plan areas that are all going to come up with their
own implementation actions. So sooner or later there's either going to be internal conflicts or
there's going to be, you know, things are going to start getting kind of strange when you have
nine plans all meant to direct one body to do an action. So, I, I don't think that it...I don't think
that looking at that process, that it's visualized to have to go back and change your
implementation plan every time you do a budget, but that's not to say that at some point in time
that you might have to because the deviation from the plan might be just be so great that you
couldn't accommodate it in the framework of saying that we're just moving money around and
we're, you know, we're putting things on the back burner. Sooner or later Molokai will or will
not get something that's it's prioritized as number one on its wish list. Sooner or later Lanai may
or may not get something that's on its wish list, you know, so there, there's, there's going to be a,
you know, a complicated process and I don't think it's going to be involved going back every
budget and amending nine community plans. That's just not feasible, you know what I'm
getting at --37-
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, that's...I, I totally agree.
MR. GIROUX: --is that if, if we go to the absurdity of it, I don't think, I don't think...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm still not terribly comfortable with the answer but I guess I don't
need to have it today.
MR. GIROUX: But, but in order to get there, you have to go to the absurdity of it, is, is will we have to
change it every time? And if we get to our nine plans and we have to change nine community
plans every time we do a budget amendment, the answer would be no. The answer would be no.
We, we just...government would not be able to function.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Whew.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We beat that one to death.
CHAIR COUCH: Any further discussion? Okay. One, one question for...'cause it was brought up.
On Page 6, number 3, the A3. Is the Department okay with that language 9 I know you wrote it
in there and you may have some issues. You guys okay with that?
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We're comfortable with it as it relates to the process for
updating the implementation plan as part of the decennial Countywide Policy Plan and Maui
Island Plan update. It serves that purpose.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. We're about ready to take a vote. Are there any other comments or concerns
you guys might have? Alright. Two minute recess, please. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

3:49 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:51 p.m.

CHAIR COUCH: . . . (gavel). . . The Planning Committee meeting will come back to order. Alright,
Members, the Chair will entertain a motion if there's no further discussion. Is there any further
discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, we all clear.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: No.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Alright. Mr. Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Just for clarification purposes, Mr. Chairman. In the document it refers
to Lanai, Molokai General Plan Advisory Council, should that be adjusted here because in
actuality what's seated is a Community Plan Advisory Council. So, for the sake of clarification
do we, do we actually change that?
CHAIR COUCH: Just while they're discussing that, didn't we have at one time a Lanai General Plan
Advisory Committee and a Molokai General Plan Advisory Committee? I believe we did.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: ... (Inaudible)...
CHAIR COUCH: Yeah. We did. And I don't think they're disbanded. They are disbanded? They are
disbanded.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: They are.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you. At...with respect to the community plan updates, what we need to
ensure we allow for is that the actions provided in the community plans that there's a vehicle so
that those actions can feed into this implementation plan and become a part of that document. So
as you noted, the review body for the community plans are CPACs, so that would be some
language that we would have to work on. I don't we want to take out the GPAC language
because as future bodies review the Countywide Policy Plan or the Maui Island Plan as it relates
to the Maui GPAC, we'll need that vehicle to address those changes.
CHAIR COUCH: And Mr. Chair too, it's...that's for the decennial reviews not...you know, if there are
other reviews then that would be done at a different time.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
MR. GIROUX: Chair, can I just -CHAIR COUCH: Yes, Mr. Giroux.
MR. GIROUX: --add to the conversation? I think the hard part of putting our heads around it is that
we're talking about something that has been done already and at a certain level that process
might be different in the near future, but as, as we do our decennial, 'cause this document will
govern our decennial, that that process might be a little different but the implementation plan
wouldn't go away. It would just be that the 2.80B that we've used to get to this point, as we're
trying to make full circle, might not actually be a complete circle. But it's...doesn't mean that
Molokai will not be involved in the process.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
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CHAIR COUCH: So you're safe. Your rash gone away already? Any further comments? Any further
discussion? Alright. Chair will entertain a motion to recommend passage on the first reading of
a proposed bill entitled, A Bill for an Ordinance Amending Chapter 2.80B, Maui County Code,
and Section 3.04.020, Maui County Code, Relating to Implementation of the General Plan as
revised; and to file County Communication 11-143.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Chair?
CHAIR COUCH: Yes.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I don't believe it was revised.
CHAIR COUCH: Oh, right. It's not revised yet.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: So moved, Mr. Chair
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: It's been moved by Ms. Baisa, seconded by Mr. Victorino to pass this on, pass this
onto the Council. Question? Members, if there's no objection, I'd like to turn your thoughts or
your attention to Page 9 --I'm sorry-- Page 5, item J where it has "and enforcement" in brackets.
I'd like to without objection remove those or if there's any discussion. Any discussion?
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: No objection, Chair, as the maker of the motion.
CHAIR COUCH: Yeah. Remove the brackets around "and enforcement" because it's semantics at this
point.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: If you'd like to amend it, I can also do that.
CHAIR COUCH: Do we need to amend it or can we just friendly remove those? Alright. I guess we'll
have to make a motion.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Chair, I move to amend.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. It's been moved by Ms. Baisa and seconded by Mr. Victorino to amend the
document to take out the brackets around "and enforcement".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Mr. Chair, if I'm clear then it now reads, shall prepare status
reports on its implementation and enforcement.
CHAIR COUCH: Correct.
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VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR COUCH: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: I understand there's two place where that appears.
CHAIR COUCH: Alright. There is a second place and I can't remember where it is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Down below. Down below just a little bit more and...
CHAIR COUCH: Oh, yes. And enforcement of the general plan and the community plans. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. So you want that too?
CHAIR COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR COUCH: Is that alright?
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: If you could read the, the new proposal, please.
CHAIR COUCH: Alright. The proposal is to remove the brackets around "and enforcement" on line
two of item J and then also the brackets around "and enforcement of the general plan and the
community plans" and then remove the word "plan", "to the mayor and the council." Yes,
Mr. Summers.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. 1 would just note that on Page 13, subsection G we also have
"and enforcement" bracketed out. It's for the Committee's attention.
CHAIR COUCH: Where?
MR. SUMMERS: That's Page 13, subsection G, Status Reports.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Second line.
CHAIR COUCH: Gotcha. Okay. Yeah. It's essentially the same thing. So, is that alright with the
mover to...
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: No objection.
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CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No objections.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Any further discussion? All those in favor of the amendment, please say,
"aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR COUCH: Opposed? Okay, I count six "ayes", zero "noes", one excused.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Couch, Vice-Chair Baisa, and Councilmembers Mateo,
Pontanilla, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Cochran.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVED AMENDMENT.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay, back to the main motion as revised. Any further discussion? Okay, all those
in favor, say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR COUCH: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR COUCH: No. Okay, I have. . .Chair has it as five "ayes", one "no", Mr. Mateo, and in both of
these, Member Cochran has been excused.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Couch, Vice-Chair Baisa, and Councilmembers Pontanilla,
Victorino, and White.
NOES: Councilmember Mateo.
ABSTAIN: None.
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ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Cochran.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: RECOMMENDING FIRST READING OF REVISED BILL AND
FILING OF COMMUNICATION.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Members. The motion passes. That ends this item for today. I
thank you.

ITEM NO. 37: M-3 RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT (CC 12-120)
CHAIR COUCH: . And we have some time. I would like to, without objection, skip to Policy [sic]
Item No. PC-37, M-3. Any.. .
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No objections.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: No objection. You plan to come back to the others?
CHAIR COUCH: Yeah. We will come back to the others probably at a different meeting.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: Alright. Thank you.
CHAIR COUCH: I think it's important that we take a look at M-3 and see if we can agree on what
needs to be in M-3. So if we could have Planning Department talk about that and I see
Mr. Alueta and...come on down. Thank you, Mr. Summers, Mr. Giroux for...and Ms. Bosco,
and Mr. Baz for a lively discussion but...alright.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sir?
CHAIR COUCH: Mister. At what time?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Four-fifteen.
CHAIR COUCH: Four-fifteen. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Last. That's it.
CHAIR COUCH: Let's get a discussion real quick and then we'll go. Mr. Alueta, can you tell us what
the reason for having M-3 is and what the highlights of this bill are?
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MR. ALUETA: Okay. This is all part of our update to Title 19 as we slowly go through chapter by
chapter to create a standardized format. The impetus for the M-3 was primarily long-standing
problem of how industrial districts get established here on Maui. Primarily your existing M-1,
M-2 industrial districts get overcrowded with fancy French, Swiss restaurants and non-industrial
type uses, pushing your heavy industrial type uses or dead storage baseyards such as a Fong
Construction or anywhere else out, out of those areas used to be these storage areas out into the
what you consider to be scrub agricultural zone, agricultural lands out in say Waiko Road area.
CHAIR COUCH: Uh-huh.
MR. ALUETA: And then later on as these uses which get established via a State Special Use Permit
within the Agricultural District get entrenched in that area. Once one goes in, another one goes
in, then eventually somebody comes in and gets a zoning for it, and then they change the zoning
to a light industrial or heavy industrial use. Once that zoning gets established, that opens it up to
all of the non-industrial type uses, and the cycle repeats itself over and over, and so you
get...you don't necessarily get the planning for industrial zoning by the dog, you kind of have
the tail wagging the dog. And so you need to protect a certain amount of what we call "purely
industrial zoned areas" because a healthy economy and healthy industry relies on some of these
more dirty industries. We've had...Council also recognized that and the previous Chair at one
point had proposed to eliminate the stacking of it and getting rid of the pyramid zoning where
you have more less-intensive uses or commercialized uses in the industrial areas being allowed
and just outright, and then his proposal was to get rid of that stacking. This was during the
previous Administration. This would have created a massive amount of existing non-conforming
uses which would've been more of a shock to the system than it really is. Many of these
industrial zoning areas have created somewhat of a mixed use areas and they function pretty
well. However, as I explained about this cycle of continue, someone comes in, gets their zoning
and then they...what you think is going to be an industrial center turns into be a commercial
shopping center.
CHAIR COUCH: But we don't have that happen around here do we?
MR. ALUETA: We don't have any of that happening.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: So what we try to do now is is we want to create these more heavy, purely industrial
areas that I don't want to say is protected from being commercialized but in some aspect is. And
it's kind of a two, two purposes, I guess for M-3. And that is one, is that it, it creates an
exclusive area for purely industrial areas that is not going to have the chance of getting too many
commercial uses inside of it, but it also if you look at the M-2 District, we have a bunch of
noxious uses that always require some type of State...you require a Special Use Permit to get
established by the County Council, okay, I mean, or either by Planning Commission or as a
Conditional Permit. And therefore, it's, it's...to streamline the whole process it's better just
establish a use or establish a place where this use is allowed by right and not so much always
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have to ask for permission for it, I mean. So that's kind of what...and one of the old school
planning philosophies is you should have a zoning...every use should be allowed somewhere in
one of your zoning as a permitted use, not so much that you...if you have a use that you always
need a permit for, then you somehow don't have all your zoning categories in there.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. So, essentially M-3 takes away the need for getting Special Use Permits for
essentially what is listed as a Special Use in M-2 or M-1. Is that correct?
MR. ALUETA: For...yeah, listed as Special Use in the -CHAIR COUCH: That's one of the things.
MR. ALUETA: --M-2. Yes.
CHAIR COUCH: And so, also M-3 does not have stacking in it so M-3 uses are M-3 uses.
MR. ALUETA: That is correct.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. And some of those uses are also possible in M-2 and M-1. Is that right?
MR. ALUETA: That is correct. So, if it was an industrial use that was listed in M-1 or an industrial use
that was listed in M-2 we hopefully had carried it over into the M-3.
CHAIR COUCH: The M-3. So, in essence you're kind of stacking M-1, 2, and 3 but not business.
MR. ALUETA: Yeah.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Alright. Members, any questions for the Department? Mr. White.
COUNC1LMEMBER WHITE: Is M-3 a new classification?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.
MR. ALUETA: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And where do you foresee implementing it?
MR. ALUETA: At this point we probably would want to implement it in where you have uses that are
currently allowed by a Special Use Permit or have been established either through some type of
Special Use Permit, primarily MECO power plants at Maalaea and/or, I mean at Kahului. And
you also have potentially, you have the mill area which is currently zoned M-2 but is industrial
mill and also power generation at there. Also in some of the industrial subdivisions where this
Council, where the Planning Department, the Planning Commission and this Council have
established conditions already to limit the amount of commercial uses in there, such as the
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Mokulele Baseyard area. In one... in some of their...one of their Change in Zonings, when they
were granted the M-2 Industrial, they were restricted on the amount of commercialized uses that
could go in there.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, but I guess the reason I'm asking is that we have the Millyard in
Wailuku, used to be a mill, used to be industrial, now it's light industrial, and of course, if we
kept it light industrial, Sam Sato's wouldn't be there to feed people. So, I can understand...I
guess my question is what's the urgency of M-3 if we're applying it to things that are unlikely to
change any time soon?
CHAIR COUCH: Well, there are...people have come in and asked for, for instance a rock crushing
plant would be a use for M-3 which we don't have that right now. They would have to go in
through a Special Use Permit every so many years and, and get that. And also, I believe the
86 acres behind the Raceway Park, part of that was slated to be M-3 if we came up with that. Is
that right?
MR. SPENCE: Yeah. That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. So this is just establishing the, the category. We're not placing it
anywhere at this point.
CHAIR COUCH: Nope.
MR. SPENCE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
MR. SPENCE: We're establishing a category. We've had several people inquire to my office about,
you know, they would like to use it, including behind the, the Raceway Park at... it's actually
Pulehunui is the proper name. You would also think perhaps it'd be, as, as Joe was saying
around the mill or even out towards the landfill because, you know, biodiesel generation. A
number of pretty obnoxious uses that--I should say noxious uses--they could be obnoxious too,
but those things perhaps they should be permitted as of right instead of going back for Special
Use Permits, you know, time and time again.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Members, any other questions? I know, Mr. Alueta, that there was a question
by a testifier. Can the minimum height be greater than 199 feet with a Special Use Permit?
MR. ALUETA: If the Council wishes to establish that, I left that open to vote to this Council to
establish. There is a category...again, in the overall, the master plan for Title 19 as far as getting
all the chapters to be organized in the same fashion, meaning you have an allowed use, you have
all the uses that are considered accessory to those allowed use, you have your development
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standards and then you also have uses that are called Special Uses that, that you think could
potentially work in the district but would require additional review by the Maui...by the planning
commissions, either Maui, Molokai, Lanai and then you have your development standards.
CHAIR COUCH: The question for you then would be why 199 feet?
MR. ALUETA: One-ninety-nine is typically the height of tallest of towers before the FAA becomes
involved so, once you start doing the blinking lights on top of the structure. From my past
experience it's always been at one...200 feet the FAA becomes involved. So, I thought that was
a good number to start at. Currently, the M-2 District for smokestacks does not have a height
limit and that's one of the loopholes we're trying to establish, but in M-3 I figured it at 199 it
was a good number to throw out there to start the discussion.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Members, any other questions?
MR. ALUETA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR COUCH: Yes.
MR. ALUETA: I know that you guys had four questions, if you want me to jog your memory on that
one?
CHAIR COUCH: We do?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We do?
CHAIR COUCH: Fire away.
MR. ALUETA: Okay. So, the questions...I answered the one why height 90 feet and 99, again, just to,
as a starting point. Again, there is a Special Use Permit category. It's...I don't...I think I left it
empty so, if there is use or some type of development that you think would might be appropriate
in the M-3 District but would require additional review you can throw it in the Special Use
Permit.
CHAIR COUCH: Oh, yes, I did have.
MR. ALUETA: Other districts have additional setbacks if they're adjacent to different zonings. Why
not this one? Both commercial and existing industrial basically have a zero setback unless they
are adjacent to more of a residential-type use. The same type of thing applies to this but you
don't normally put this type of use near a residential and I don't think 6 or 10 foot setback from
the property line on a M-3 or a chlorine processing plant or the MECO Power Plant is going to
do much if it's next to a R-1 Residential. And hopefully, the community plan participants don't
designate any industrial restrictive next to some new residential development, I mean, and again,
that's part of the planning process. You, you kind of anticipate these to be out either in areas
-47-

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 30, 2012

where there not going to be noxious uses or they're surrounded by existing industrial uses. Why
is the office limited to 1,000 feet; it's pretty small -CHAIR COUCH: That was a question.
MR. ALUETA: --for an office for a major industrial uses. Again, the purpose of the M-3 Industrial is a
limited...it's to limit non-industrial type uses. Again, this is the reason that we have a lot of our
real industrial uses are being pushed into the Agricultural Districts with Special Use Permits. If
the user needs more office or commercial space, they can chose to zone part of their property as
M-2. So you could have a split zoning on a parcel for that, but if you go to pure industrial plants
such as HC&S, which is really agriculture, but if you go to HC&S or if you go to MECO power
plant or a MECO...they're not...there's not really an offices that are really big and they're really
just more operational. They're not even called offices. It's...and if they have a big
administrative offices where people generally come they don't normally have it at the plant site.
They'll have it separately. And so if you create an industrial subdivision of M-3, if you...you
don't want to have the potential where somebody's going to create...set up a commercialized
office next to your...where you've already said you want to have industrial, industrial uses. You
want to protect that M-3 for purely industrial uses. Why does Special Accessory Use Permits get
approved by the Director and not the planning commission? In the overall streamlined process
for Title 19, accessory uses, like if somebody comes in for an accessory use to an existing
commercial use, we wanted to have it at the Director level. If there's some other use that's
different then it'll either be a Conditional Permit, has to go to Council or if it's listed or if it's
thought of, it would be a Special Use Permit.
CHAIR COUCH: Okay. Members, any further questions or concern? Okay. We're probably going to
make some changes but if there's no further discussion I'll entertain a motion to recommend
passage on first reading of the proposed bill entitled, A Bill for an Ordinance Amending Title 19,
Maui County Code, Relating to M-3 Restricted Industrial District; and to file County
Communication 12-120.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: So moved, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR COUCH: It's been moved by Ms. Baisa and seconded by Mr. Victorino. Members, just for
quick discussion, I know Mr. Victorino has to go. On Page 3, Notes and Exceptions. Any
concerned, concern about the 1,000 square foot maximum of office space in a, in a M-3 zone?
Chair would like to make that number go to at least 2,000 square feet, without any objection.
We have Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No objection. I'm wondering what the rationale is for limiting office
space in a...
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CHAIR COUCH: He brought that up as far as you don't want to have a big set of offices around an M-3
use. If they want to have that then they can make it M-2.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Then what's, what's the definition of an office space?
CHAIR COUCH: Mr. Alueta.
MR. ALUETA: Well, again, it's not such a, Mr. Chairman, it's not so much a problem if it's offices for
a, for the use itself, but it could be accessory like say they wanted to have a small...lease out a
portion of their, their building to another company. It could still be considered sort of accessory
to that unit but they have a restaurant in there.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So, is this limited...is that limit just on accessory, you know, leased out
spaces or is that for the business itself?
CHAIR COUCH: Well, the use right here says, accessory, office, retail, or indoor product display area
limited to 20 percent of the gross floor area, not to exceed 1,000 square feet.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
MR. ALUETA: And the number pretty much came...I mean obviously it's a new district so we're
trying to...we're forging new ground. In discussions with I guess a few people who have
manufacturing...I had a guy who he was an architect; he also owned a granite business. So, he
had three...he had three different areas. He had a showroom as part of his granite and he also
had a manufacturing baseyard out in Mokulele because that's where he did all his manufacturing.
And...but he felt wanted to have the ability to manufacture, you know, have a big yard in the
back where you can walk and look at, look at all the different granites that you could choose
from, be able to manufacture the, the finished, meaning the countertops and do all the cutout, but
at the same time have a, have a showroom where you could see what it would look like in a
cabinet. And he currently... but he didn't want...I mean, so he wanted to be able to do that all at
once, I mean, in one location. But he needed to have showroom in town, and so he had it in an
industrial area.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: But what's the purpose of limiting the office space?
MR. ALUETA: I guess it's just to make sure that, you know, someone that has more of a retail outlet
doesn't have...that the business doesn't become a, a...the retail...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: But these aren't retail-type operations.
CHAIR COUCH: No, I know. But as an accessory use, it says office, retail or indoor product display
area. And I know, Mr. Victorino has to go, so if you don't mind rescinding your motion we can
defer this 'cause it looks like it's going to be a long discussion.
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VICE-CHAIR BAISA: No objection.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: ... (Inaudible)...
CHAIR COUCH: 'Cause there's a couple other things.
VICE-CHAIR BAISA: No, no objection, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR COUCH: Yeah. So, because we'll lose quorum. So, I thank the Members, the motion has been
withdrawn. We will defer without objection, we'll defer M-1, M-2, M-3 to a different meeting.
Okay. Not hearing any objection, I want to thank the Departments for being here. Members,
thanks for hanging in here. It was a long discussion on the previous item. So, alright. We
will...thank you, Staff for being here and thanks for the attorneys.
ITEM NO. 35: M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT
ITEM NO. 36: M-2 HEAVY INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.

(CC 12-118)
(CC 12-119)

(Excused: EC and JP)

ACTION: DEFER (PC-35, PC-36, and PC-37).
CHAIR COUCH: This meeting is adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .
ADJOURN: 4:20 p.m.

APPROVED:

DONALD G. COUCH, JR.,
Planning Committee
pc:min:120730
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